Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Anand Rathi Wealth Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Anand Rathi Wealth
Services Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. In our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its profit (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements Section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder; and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

3. Attention is invited to Note No 41 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements regarding the
uncertainties arising out of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the assessment made by the
management on its operations and financial reporting for the year ended March 31, 2020; such an
assessment and the outcome of the pandemic, as made by the management, is dependent on the
circumstances as they evolve in the subsequent periods. Our report is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information, comprising
of the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Directors’ Report including
Annexures to Directors’ Report, Corporate Governance and such other disclosures related Information,
excluding the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and auditors report thereon (‘Other Information’).
The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report. Our
opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the other
Information and if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
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communicate the matter to those charges with governance as required under SA 720 'The Auditor's
responsibilities Relating to other Information’

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under prescribed Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

6. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of our audit in accordance with SAs we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
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conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our Auditor’s Report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Other Matters

7. The entire audit finalization process was carried from remote locations i.e. other than the office of the
Company where books of account and other records are kept, based on data/details or financial
information provided to us through digital medium, owing to complete lockdown imposed by the Central
Government to restrict the spread of COVID19. Being constrained, we resorted to and relied upon the
results of the related alternate audit procedures to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence for the
significant matters in course of our audit. Our report is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

9. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to over financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in Annexure 2.

g. Interms of provisions of Section 197(16) of the Act, as per the information and explanations given, we
report that the managerial remuneration paid by the Company to its Directors is in accordance with
provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, we report as under:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the financials position in its
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. Refer Note no. 34 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements;

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 105146W / W100621

Jopar=

Gautam V Shah

Partner

Membership No.: 117348

ICAI UDIN : 20117348AAAACS1302

Place : Mumbai
Date : August 26, 2020
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Anand Rathi Wealth Services Limited
[referred to in para 8 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’]

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As informed to us, fixed assets were physically verified by the Management at regular intervals.
In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and nature of its business; according to the information and explanations given to us,
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held
in the name of the Company.

ii. The nature of business of the Company does not require it to have any inventory. Hence, the
reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to it.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted unsecured loans
to companies covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act, in respect of which :
(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.
(b) The Schedule of repayment of principal and interest is regular as and when they fall due
(c) There were no overdue as at the balance sheet date.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and Section 186 of the Act, in respect of grant of loans,
making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public during the year in terms of the provisions of Sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Act in respect of services rendered by the Company.

vii. In respect of Statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Goods
and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues generally have been regularly deposited
during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. There are no undisputed
statutory dues payable in respect to the above statues, outstanding as at March 31, 2020 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no cases of non-deposit with appropriate authorities of
disputed dues of Income tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom duty, Cess and other material
statutory dues.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. Further, the Company has not taken
loans or borrowings from government and has not issued any debentures.

iX. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, Company has not raised

moneys by way of initial public offer (including debt instruments). During the year, the Company has
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Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

purchased premises of Rs 6,539 lakh for which the company has taken a loan of Rs 4,165 Lakh from
Bank. The Company has utilized Rs. 3,672 lakh from the said loan towards repayment of Inter
Corporate Loan taken for purchase of said premises .

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as required under applicable Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS).

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with them. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is required to be registered under Section 45IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 considering that the company’s financial assets and financial income constitute more
than 50 per cent of the total assets and gross income. The Company has not obtained the registration
as the Management is of the view that the financial assets constituting more than 50 per cent of the
total assets is temporary in nature and there is no intention of the Company to act as NBFC.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 105146W / W100621

Jopre=

Gautam V Shah

Partner

Membership No.: 117348
ICAI UDIN : 20117348AAAACS1302

Place : Mumbai
Date : August 26, 2020
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Anand Rathi Wealth Services Limited
[referred to in paragraph 9(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Act
Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Anand Rathi Wealth
Services Limited (‘the Company’) as at March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements
which are operating effectively, design whereof needs to be enhanced to make it comprehensive. Based on
verification of process control matrixes, made available to us for the financial year under report and
thereafter, in our opinion considering the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note, appropriate
documentation thereof needs to be strengthened to make the same commensurate with the size of the
Company and nature of its business.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with referce to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company.

(b)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and

(c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 105146W / W-100621

Jogr=

Gautam V Shah

Partner

Membership No.: 117348

ICAI UDIN : 20117348AAAACS1302

Place : Mumbai
Date : August 26, 2020
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ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
CIN : U67120MH1995PLCOB6696
IND AS STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

(Rs in Lakh)
AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31,
PARTICULARS Notes 2020 2019
| ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 7,364.72 669.31
Right-of -use Asset 3 2,312.27
Other Intangible assets 4 74.34 7.3
Financial Assets
- Investments 5(i) 19,114.92 5,384.22
- Loan 6(i) 236.36 377.94
- Other Financial assets 7(i) 199.00 50.00
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 8 210.08 74.00
Other Non Current Assets 9 291.78 2,801.96
29,803.47 9,629.74
Current Assets
Financial Assets
- Investments 5(ii) 183.21 7,508.54
- Trade Receivables 10 799.19 927.81
- Cash and cash equivalents 1 2,596.31 1,110.60
- Loans 6(ii) 5,274.84 713.43
- Other Financial Assets T(iiy 3,095.96 1,056.26
Other Current Assets 12 1,154.23 345.56
13,103.74 11,662.20
TOTAL ASSETS 42,907.21 21,291.94
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 13 1,351.37 1.345.43
Other Equity 14 21,154.98 14,130,135
22,506.35 15,475.78
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings 15(i) 3,335.97 36.84
- Other Financial Liabilities 17(i) 1,422.17
4,758.14 36.84
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrawings 151ii) 837.02 21.84
- Trade Payables 16
Total Qutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 34.25
Total Qutstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 121.14 7.50
- Other Financial Liabilities 1701) 10,011.16 1,963.23
Other Current Liabilities 18 519.97 399.17
Provisions 19 4,119.18 3,386.58
15,642.72 5,779.32
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 42,907.21 21,291,94
Notes Forming Part of Ind AS Standalone Financial Statement 1-42
As per our attached report of even date. For and on Behalf of Board MZHE;;QU
For and on Behalf of aﬁ C
Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP AmitRathi Rakesh Rawal
Chartered Accountants Managing Director Director & Chief Executive Officer
Registration No.:105146W/W100621 DIN : 00029791 DIN : 02839168

Sy

Gautam V Shah

Partner

Membership No: 117348
Mumbai

Date: Aunus{ 2¢ 2020

Sth August, 2020 Sth August, 2020

Ashish Chauhan
Company Secretary
Sth August, 2020

Chief Financial Officer
Sth August, 2020




ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U67120MH1995PLCOB6696
IND AS STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2020

(Rs in Lakh)

FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
PARTICULARS NOTES ENDED MARCH ENDED MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019
| Revenue From Operation 20 32,235.53 26,760.12
] QOther Income 21 570.22 1.296.25
Total Revenue 32,805.75 28,056.37
1] Expenses:
Employee Benefit Expenses 22 16,098.72 12,734.93
Finance Costs 23 323.98 332.53
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses ja4 1,575.40 385.07
Other Expenses 4 5.,231.82 5,251.44
Total Expenses 23,229.92 18,703.97
v Profit Before Tax 9,575.83 9,352.40
V' Tax Expenses:
1. Current Tax 25 2,584.13 3,435.95
2. Deferred Tax 15 {136.10) (599.89)
Total Tax Expenses 2,448.03 2,836.06
Vi Profit for the year 7,127.80 6,516.34
Vil Other Comprehensive Income/ (loss)
(A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (105.82) (23.42)
{ii) Less : Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss
(B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss =
(if) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Other comprehensive Income/(Loss) (105.82) (23.42)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 7,021.98 6,492.92
Vil Earning Per Equity Share of FV of Rs. 5 each
Basic 26.40 24.22
Diluted 26.04 23.78
Notes Forming Part of Ind AS Standalone Financial Statement 1-42

As per aur attached report of even date.

For and on Behalf of

Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.:105146W/W100621
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Gautam V Shah

Partner

Membership No: 117348
Mumbai

Date: Aujus-b 26 2020

For and on Behalf of Board of Difectprs

Amit &éﬂ'

Managing Director
DIN : 00029791
5th August, 2020
Al
)
s
Ashish Chauhan

Company Secretary
Sth August, 2020

v

Rakesh Rawal

Director & Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 02839168

Sth August, 2020

Qs K-

Rajesh Bhutara
Chief Financial Officer
5th August, 2020




ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
CIN : U67120MH1995PLCOBE6YS
IND AS STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A Equity Share Capltal

Mos. Rs in Lakh
Equity shares of Rs 10 =ach ssued, subscribed and fully pard at
Aprl 01, 2018 1,34.41,040 1.344.30
Shares Issued during the year for consiceration of Rs 10 each 11,260 1.13
Subarvision af shares 1,34,54,300 :
Equity shares of Rs 5 each ssued, subscribed and fully paid at
March 31, 2019 2,69,08,600 1,345.43
Shares ssued durirg the year for consideration of Rs 5 each 1,18,840 5.94
Equity shares of Rs 5§ each ssued, subscribed and fully paid at
March 31, 2020 2.70.27, 440 1,351.37
B. Other Equity
(Rs in Lakh)
Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Total Other Equity
Securities Premium Retained Eamnings | _ESOP Outstanding Income
Balance as at April 1, 2018 2.519.1 5,124.59 0.68 (9.66) 7,635.32
Profit for the Year 6,516.14 5 6,516.34
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit hability/asset - (23.42) 123.42)
Total 3.319.M 11,640.93 0.68 (33.08) 14,128.24
Issue of shares on premsurm 0.32 0.32
Totol 2,520.03 11,640.93 0.68 {33.08) 14,128 56
Addition in Share Options durning the year mm wn
Legs : Utilisation dunng the year - 10.32) (0.32}
Balance as at March 31, 2019 2,520.03 11,640.93 2.47 (33.08) 14,130.35
Balance as at April 1, 2019 1,520.03 11,640.93 247 133.08) 14,130.35
Profit for the year 7,127.80 - 7,127.40
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit llability /asset - 1105.82)) (105.82)
Total 2,520.03 18,768.73 2.47 1138.50); 21,152.13
Issue of shares on premum 1.68 1.68
Total 2,501 18,768.73 .47 (138.50)) 21,154.01
Addition in Share Options during the year 2.65 2.65
Less : Utilisation dunng the year i1.68) 11.68)
Reversal of Share Options 0,14 10.14)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 2,521.71 18,768.87 3.30 {138.90); 21,154.98
N

As per our attached report of even date.

For and on Behalf of

Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registranion No.:105146W/W 100621

Gautam V Shah

Partner

Membership No: 117348
Mumibat

Date: Agjus{ 26 zo20

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

I

Managing Director
DIN : 00029791
Sth August, 2020

Ashish Chauhan
Company Secretary
Sth August, 2020

Rakesh Rawal

(Fas

Director & Chief Executive Officer

DIN : 02839168

Ra

Chief Financial Officer

Sth August, 2020

Sth August, 2020 g
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Date: Auﬂ\us-(: 26 2020

ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
CIN : U67120MH1995PLCOBE696
IND AS STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
(Rs in Lakh)
£ FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH ENDED MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS 9,575.83 9,352.40
Add / (Less) :
Depreciation i Amortisation 1,575.40 385.07
Interest Income (238.62) 1474.81)
Interest Expenses 323.98 332.53
Gain on Sale of Investments (230.00) (246.55)
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 62.80 1106.71)
Dividend 10.65) =
ESOP .65 m
(Gain| or Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets/Asset written off 1.41 -
(Gain)fLass on Investment (n PMS 10.22) -
Bad Debts written aff 10.14 -
Gratuity 79.92 63.90
Leave 130.05 39.13
1,716.86 (5.33)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 11,292.69 9,347.07
Adjustment for :
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Financial Assets (2,163.27) 1,234.80
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables 118.47 117.78
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets 1808.68) 203.89
IDecrease}/Increase in Trade Payables 147.89 135.67)
(Decrease|/Increase in Other Financial Liabilities 7.091.03 (2.284.08)
{Decrease)/Increase in Provisions 416.82 745.26
{Decrease)/Increase Other Current Liabilities 120.81 1103.32)/
4,923.07 (121.34)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 16,215.76 9,225.73
Add / | Less) :
Direct Taxes Paid (Net} (1.963.95) 13,481.49)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 14,251.81 5,742.24
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Fixed Assets (4,975.70} 1386.07)
Sale of Fixed Assets 2.00 .
Acquisition of Software (79.31}) 121,75
Advance for Property Purchase . 11.,890.00)
(Loans Given)/Loans Repayment Received 14,417.56) 4,207.44
Dividend received 0.65 .
Interest Received 197.59 454,72
Security Deposit (Given)/Received 10.75}| (214.62)
Investment in Subsidiaries and Other Companies (13,723.95) (4,204.81)
Purchase of Other [nvestment (5,68,205.00)) 11,58,250.30)
Sale of Other Investment 5.75.738.77 1,56,004.%4
Investment in Fixed Deposit (149.00) 125.00)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (15,612.26) (4,325.45)
c. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Loan Taken/(Repayment| 4,133 (8.84)
Interest paid 163.43) 1332.53)
lssue of Shares 35.94 1.13
Lease Payments 11,209.66) .
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,846.16 (340.24)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,485.71 1,076.55
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Opening Balance 1,110.60 34.05
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Closing Balance 2,596.31 1,110.60
Details of Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of the year
- Cash in Hand 3.36 9,70 |
- Balance in Current Account 1,592.95 0.90
- Balance in Deposit Account - 1,100.00
Total 2,596.31 1,110.60
Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set aut in Ind AS-7 specified under n 183 of the Companies Act, 2013.
As per gur attached report of even date. For and on Behalf of Board of W
For and on Behalf of W V:.L
Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP Amit i h Rawal
Chartered Accountants Managing Director Director & Chief Executive Officer
Registration No.: 105146W/W100621 DIN : 00029791 DIN : 02839168
Sth August, 2020 Sth August, 2020
o™ g
Gautam V Shah > é/’
Partner Ashish Chauhan Rajesh Bfiutara
Membership No: 117348 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Mumbal Sth Avgust, 2020 Sth August, 2020




ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LTD
CIN :
NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

U67120MH1995PLC086696

1

(a

-—

(b)

(<)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Anand Rathi Wealth Services Limited ("the Company’) having CIN U67120MH1995PLC086696 was incorporated on March 22, 1995. On March 8, 2017, the
Company was converted from Private Company to Public Company. Its registered office is at Express Zone, A Wing, 10th Floor, Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400 063, Maharashtra. It is engaged in business of Services for Distribution and Sale of Financial products.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS") as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’’), amendments thereto and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on August 05,2020.

Basis of preparation of Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements

These Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. The accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of the Financial Statements are consistent with those followed in the previous year by the Company.

Fair Value Measurement

in addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.

Critical Accounting Judgments and key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements requires management to make judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in next financial years.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

(i) Amortisation of Customer relationship cost: During the year 2016-17 company has acquired Private Wealth Management business from Religare Wealth
Management Limited, for which the company has made payment which have been capitalised as Customer Relationship Cost. Company expects that it will get
future economic benefit of it over the period of 3 years.

(i) Depreciation / Amortisation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment: Company depreciate its tangible assets over the useful life of an Asset asJ
prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013. Company remeasure remaining useful life of an asset at the end of each reporting date.

(iii) Fair value measurement: Fair Value is a price of orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions. Company determines Fair Value of Quoted Investment from available market price. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using appropriate valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required
in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.




ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LTD
CIN : U67120MH1995PLC0866%6
NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(iv) Provisions: Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event; and it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation. Management estimates it by using its best judgement of future cash outflow.

(v) Taxes: The Company periodically assesses its liabilities and contingencies related to income taxes for all years open to scrutiny based on latest information
available. For matters where it is probable that an adjustment will be made, the Company records its best estimates of the tax liability in the current tax
provision. The Management believes that it has adequately provided for the probable outcome of these matters.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timingF
and the level of future taxable profits.

(vi) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations
The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends

in salary escalation and attrition rate. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
securities.

{d) Current and Non-Current Classification

An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:—

{a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
All other assets shall be classified as non-current.

A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:—

(a) it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(d) the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date,

Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
All other liabilities shall be classified as non-current.

(e

Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets and Depreciation & Amortisation

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Direct costs in relation to the fixed assets are
capitalized until such assets are ready for use.

(i) Tangible Assets: Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management.
Depreciation for assets purchased during a period is proportionately charged. The Management estimates the useful lives and residual values of the fixed
assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013 as follows.

Fixed Assets Useful Life
Office Equipments 5 years
Computer Equipments
a. Server 6 years
b. Other Computer Equipments 3 years
Motor Car 8 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

(i) Improvements on leased premised are depreciated over the lease period.

(ifi) Intangible Assets: Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment, if any.

Customer Relationship and Software cost is amortised over the period of 3 years.




ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LTD
CIN : U67120MH1995PLC0O86696
NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(f) Financials Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial Recognition :

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to|
borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs|
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in Statement of|
Profit and Loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

(i) Classification & Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified as ‘Amortised Cost’, 'Fair Value through Profit and Loss' (FVTPL) and Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income’ (FVTOCI) in
the following categories:

Debt Instruments at amortised cost: Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition)

« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold asset to collect contractual cash flows; and

« the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding

Debt Instruments at FVTOC!: Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI (except for those designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition)

« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

« the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding

Debt Instruments at FVTPL: Any debt instrument which is either initially designated at FVTPL or which does not meets the criteria for Amortised cost or
FVTOC! is measured at FVTPL.

Effective Interest Rate Method: Interest income from security deposits and debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Equity Instruments at FVTOCI: On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument by instrument basis) to present the|
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the
instrument is held for trading. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investment.

Financial Assets at FVTPL: Investments in equity instruments are classified at FVTPL, unless they were irrevocably elected on initial recognition as FVOCI.
Financial Assets at FVTPL are measured at Fair Value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in the,
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LTD
CIN : U67120MH1995PLC086696
NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost, FVOCI debt instruments, and
other financial assets. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 39 details how the
Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime]
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when :

« The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more
recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset
is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(iv) Financial Liabilities:

Financial liabilities which are held for trading or are designated at FVTPL are measured at fair value with changes being recognised in the statement of Profit
and Loss.

Financial liabilities that are not held for trading and are not designated as at FVTPL, are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amounts of financial
liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.

(v) Derecognition of financial liabilities
Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. A substantial

modification in the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted as a discharge of original financial liability and recognition of new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised as profit or loss.

(vi) Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal|
right and ability to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(g) Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(h

-

Impairment of Assets

Property, plant or equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying
amount may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent to those from other assets.

The Carrying Amount of Assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An asset isJ
treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss, if any, is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. Reversal of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the
impairment losses recognized for the assets no longer exists or have decreased
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NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(M)

P

@G

(k)

0]

Cash and cash equivalents

(i) Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposit with original maturity upto three months, which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

(if) For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short-term deposit, as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdraft as they are considered as an integral part of Company's cash management.

Borrowing Cost and Finance Charges

Borrowing cost attributable to acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of the cost of such assets up to the date when such|
assets are ready for its intended use. Other borrowing cost are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred. BorrowingJ
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and is measured with reference to the effective
interest rate applicable to the respective borrowings.

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of]
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes
these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of -use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e.
the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise|
an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution plan - Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company is statutorily required to
contribute a specified portion of the basic salary of an employee to a provident fund as a part of retirement benefits to its employees. The contributions
during the period are charged to statement of profit and loss. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the Provident Fund scheme as an expenditure
when an employee renders related service.

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity, which is in the nature of Defined Benefit Schemes, are payable only to employees and accounted for on accrual basis. The
Cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and
are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company has funded its Gratuity liability under group scheme with an Insurer. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of the scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is
limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the scheme.
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NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
Short Term Employee Benefits - The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employees are recognized during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include incentive and Annual Leave which are expected to
occur within twelve months after the end of the peried in which the employee renders the related service.

(m) Revenue Recognition
Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers became effective from the year under report. Accordingly, the Company assesses the nature, timing and
extent of revenue based on performance obligations in its contracts/understanding/trade customs with customers & clients.
Revenue is recognized to the extent that is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount based on performance obligation
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of discounts.
Income from Distribution and sale of Financial product includes Distribution income on Mutual Fund, Portfolio Management Service (PMS), Referral fees,
Consultancy income, Gain/ Loss on sale of Investment (Structured Product), Commission income and Marketing Support charges.
1. Income related with Distribution income on Mutual Fund, PMS, Advisory activities, Referral fees, Consultancy, commission Income and Marketing Support
charges is accounted on accrual basis.
2. Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the income is established.
3. Difference between the sale price and the carrying value of investment is recognised as profit or loss on sale/ redemption on investment on trade date of
transaction. Carrying value of investments is determined based on weighted average cost of investments sold.
4. Interest income is recognised on a time basis using the effective interest method.

(n) Taxes on Income
Current Tax: Provision for Income Tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Provision for Minimum Alternative Tax|
{MAT) is in accordance with the provisions of Section 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is provided, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying|
amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporaryr
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Tax relating to items recognised|
directly in equity or OCI is recognised in equity or OCl and not in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously
A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary difference can be|
utilised. Deferred tax assels are reviewed al each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable.

(o) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event; and it is probable that an outflow of resources|
will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the Balance Sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Contingent Liabilities are possible but not probable obligations as on the Balance Sheet date, based on the available evidence. Contingent Liabilities are not
recognised in the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements.
Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed.

(p) Earning per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the company by the weightedJ
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Pl
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NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(q) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows statement is prepared using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature item of!
income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

(r

Share Based payment Arrangements

Equity settled share based payments to employees and others are measured at the fair value of equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's
estimate of equity instrument that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity.

(s

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule]
IIl, unless otherwise stated.




ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LIMITED

CIN : US7120MH1995PLCOBGE9E

NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Rs in Lakh)
Right-of-Use Leasehold Computer Office Furniture &
Uneiptiin Saiicina m‘um Improvements equipment Vehicies equipments Fixtures Total
Gross Block as at April 1. 2019 - 52.36 261.96 164.43 60.13 262.37 801.25
Additions 6,538,58 1,441.50 - 280.01 4.8 42.29 10,309.20
Disposals/Written off > . . .79 - 0.08 2.27 5.14
Gross Block as at March 31, 2020 £,538.58 1,443.50 52.36 539.18 164,43 64.87 102.39 11,105.31
Accumulated depreciation as at April |, 2019 - - 1.3 71.46 331.65 150 18.02 131.94
Depreciation for the year 1.131.23 4,99 104.16 19.58 11.96 16.19 1,298.11
Less : Disposals/Written off - - 1.07 = 0.05 0.61 1.73
Accumulated depreciation as at March 11, 2020 1,131.23 6.30 174.56 53.23 19.41 43.60 1,428.32
Net carrying amount as at March 11, 2020 6.538.58 2,312.27 46.06 364.63 111.20 45.46 258.79 9.676.99
DacHptiGn Building Right-of-Use Leasehold Computer Vehicies Office Furniture & Total
Asset tmz’cwmu equipment equipments Fixtures
Gross Block as at Apnil 1, 2018 - . . 145.60 151.16 15.98 102.44 415,18
Additions 5 52.36 116.36 13.27 44,15 159.93 386.07
Disposals . - s - =
Gross Block as at March 31, 2019 51.36 261.96 164,43 60.13 262.37 801.25
Accumutated depreciation as at April 1, 2018 18.61 14.35 0.98 2.82 36.76
Depreciation for the year 1.3 52.85 19.30 6.52 15.20 95.18
Less : Disposals - . . 5 -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2019 1.3 71.46 13.6% 7.50 18.02 131.94
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 51.05 190.50 130.78 52.63 24435 669.31
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Rs in Lakh)
Customer
Description ey Rthllomh_ip_ ol
Opening Gross Block as at Apnil 1, 2019 21.75 856.31 878.06
Additions .3 79.31
Disposals +
Gross Block as at March 31, 2020 101.06 856.31 957.37
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2019 4.46 601,29 805.75
Amortisation for the year 2517 5211 277.28
Disposals - -
Accumulated amortisation as at March 11, 2020 29.63 853.40 881.03
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 71.41 2.9 74,34
Customer

Description Software S Total
Gross Block as at April 1, 2018 856.31 856.31
Additiens n.T7s . .15
Disposals - - .
Gross Block as at March 31, 2019 .75 £56.31 B78.06
Accumulated amortisation as at Apel 1, 2018 C 315.86 315.86
Amortisation for the year 4.46 285,43 289.89
Less : Disposals - -
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2019 4.46 601.29 605.75
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 17.2% 255.02 272.31




[ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
CIN : U67120MH1995PLCOB6ESS

NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

5 INVESTMENTS

{1} Investments - Nen current

Un-Quoted - Fully Paid
Investment in Equity Shares of Subsidianes at Cost
AR Wealth Management Private Limited™
Freedom Wealth Solutions Private Limited
Ffreedom Intermediary infrastructure Private Limited

Investiment in Equity Shares of Other Companies at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Anand Rathi Giobal Finance Limited®

consideration of Rs. 10125.00 lakhs

Aggregaie amount of Un-quoted nvestment

{ii} Investments - Current

Quoted.
Investment in Mutual Fund and PMS at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
LIC Liquid Fund - Regular Plan - Growth
Retiance Liquid Fund - Growth Plan®
Aditya Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund - Growth®
Investment in PMS™

Unguoted
Investment in PMS at Fair Value through Profit and Loss™

* The units have been pledged as collateral for margin on Optiens as at March 11, 2019,

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investment and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of Un-quoted Investment

(Rs in Lakh)
AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 11,
2019 2020 2019
Qty. In Nos. Qty. in Nos. Amount Amount

0,57,059 40,57.059 5.147.06 5,147.06

23,741,623 13.71.625 237.16 237.16
8.29.252 3,598.95
22,50.000 10,131.75

19.114.92 5,384.22

* During the FY 18:19, Company has purchased 12,65,434 shares of A R Wealth Management Private Limited for consideration of Rs 4204.81 lakhs.

* During the FY 1920, Company has purchased 8.29,252 shares of Ffreedom |ntermediary Infrastructure Private Limited for consideration of Rs 31598.95 lakhs and 72.50,000 shares of Anand Rathi Global Finance Limited for

** The amount represents Investment in Portfolio which is managed by Anand Rathi Advisors Limited - PMS and includes equity shares, mutual fund units, debentures and other investments,

19,114.92 5,384.22
(Rs in Lakh)
AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Qty. in Nos. Qty. in Nos. Amount Amount
1,33,776.26 4.,504.34
22,070.90 1,001.84
6.69,607.58 - 2.002.16
109.31 -
7350
183.21 7,508.54
109.31

73.90

7.508.54




ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

6 LOANS (Rs in Lakh)
AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31,
(i) Loans - Non current 2020 2019
{Un Secured, Considered Good)
Security Deposits 236.36 377.94
236.36 377.94
(Rs in Lakh)
AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31,
(ii) Loans - Current 2020 2019
(Un Secured, Considered Good)
Security Deposits 178.86 35.01
Intercorporate Deposit To Related Party
{(Un Secured, Considered Good)
A R Wealth Management Private Ltd 456.38
Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Pvt Ltd - 202.37
Anand Rathi Advisors Ltd 5,076.31
(Secured, Considered Good) .
Others (Refer Note 40) 19.67 19.67
5,274.84 713.43
7 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Rs in Lakh)
AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31,
) QOther Financial Assets - Non current 2020 2019
Fixed Deposit with Bank 199.00 50.00
199.00 50.00
(Above is under Lien against Bank Overdraft)
(Rs in Lakh)
AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31,
(i) Other Financial Assets - Current 2020 2019
Option Premium (net) 409.23 -
Accrued Interest 8.46 1.59
Fixed Deposit with Bank 50.00
{Above Fixed Deposit is under Lien against Bank Overdraft)
Securities Held as Stock in trade
Un-Quoted - Fully Paid up
Debentures at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
In Anand Rathi Global Finance Limited Debentures 2,481.51 1,020.26
In Edelweiss Debenture 13.75
Staff Advances 146.75 20.66
3,095.96 1,056.26
Aggregate amount of Un-quoted Debentures 2,481.51 1,034.01

‘\\I = RJ/
(
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ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
CIN : U67120MH1995PLCOB6696
NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

8 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / (LIABILITIES)

Depreciation

Long Term Capital Loss

Leave Provision

Fair Valuation of Financial Instruments

Impact on recognition of Right-of-Use Asset and Lease Liability

9 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Tax - Rs, 6013,15 lakh, FY 18-19 Rs, 4964.81 lakh)
Capital Advances

10 TRADE RECEIVABLES

{Unsecured, Considered good)
Trade Receivables

11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with Banks
- in Current Accounts
- in Deposit Accounts
Cash in Hand

12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

{Unsecured, Considered good)
Staff Advances
Income Tax Refund Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
GST Input Credit
Advance to Others

(Rs in Lakh)

AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31,
2020 2019

62.25 45.77

9.86 8.80

76.37 50.50

15.80 (31.07)

45.80 =

210.08 74.00

(Rs in Lakh)

AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31,
2020 2019

291.78 911,96

1,890.00

291.78 2,801.96

(Rs in Lakh)

AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31,
2020 2019

799.19 927.81

799.19 927.81

(Rs in Lakh)

AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31,
2020 2019

2,592.95 0.90

- 1,100.00

3.36 9.70

2,596.31 1,110.60

(Rs in Lakh)

AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31,
2020 2019

0.46 131.63

948,35 s

16.03 68.77

89.73 132.47

99.66 12.69

1,154.23 345.56




ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
CIN : U67120MH1995PLCOB6696
NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(Rs in Lakh)
AS AT MARCH 31,  AS AT MARCH 31,
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 2020 2019
Authorised
4,00,00,000 (FY 18-19 - 4,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.5/-each) Equity Shares of Rs.5/-each 2,000.00 2,000.00
2,000.00 2,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up
2,70,27,440 (FY 18-19 - 2,69,08,600 Equity Shares of Rs 5/- each ) Equity Shares of Rs.5/-each
Fully Paid Up 1,351.37 1,345.43
1,351.37 1,345.43
Reconciliation for No. of shares outstanding during the year
2019-20 2018-19
Equity Shares No. of Shares (Rs in Lakh) No. of Shares (Rs in Lakh)
i innil f
::.;es outstanding at the beginning of the 2.69.,08,600 1.345.43 1,34,43,040 1.344.30
h [ i th r i
S args Ssued during e yea or 1,18,840 5.04
consideration of Rs 5 each
Shares Issued during the year for
consideration of Rs 10 each 1,260 1.13
Subdivision of shares « 1,34,54,300
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 2,70,27,440 1,351.37 2,69,08,600 1,345.43

The face value of equity shares of the Company has been subdivided from Rs. 10 per equity share to Rs. 5 per equity share vide approval of]

shareholders in extraordinary general meeting held on 14 August 2018.

Terms/Rights attached to the Equity Shares
Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a face value of Rs 5 per share. Each holder of equity share is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupee. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors,
if any, is subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of Liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after]
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the Shareholders.

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

Name of Shareholders

Anand Rathi Financial Services Limited
Anand Rathi
Pradeep Kumar Gupta

Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, share issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of
five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

March 31, 2019
March 31, 2018
March 31, 2017
Mmarch 31, 2016
March 31, 2015

Share reserved for issue under options

For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Company, please refer Note No. 30

AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

No. of shares held % of Holdings  No. of shares held % of Holdings
1,19,64,082 44,27 1,20,54,082 44.80
36,58,260 13.54 36,58,260 13.60
15,10,508 5.59 15,10,508 5.61

Bonus shares
issued by the
Company

Issue of shares for
consideration other Shares bought back
than cash

62,30,464




ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LIMITED

CIN : U67120MH1995PLCOB6696
NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(Rs in Lakh)
AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31,

OTHER EQUITY 2020 2019
Securities Premium
Opening balance 2,520.03 2,519.7
Add: Addition During the year 1.68 0.32
Balance as at year end 2,521.71 2,520.03
Share Options Outstanding Account
Opening Balance 2.47 0.68
Addition during the year 2.65 2.1
Less : Transferred to Securities Premium (1.68) (0.32)
Less : Reversal during the year (0.14) -
Balance as at year end 3.30 2.47
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 11,640.93 5,124.59
Add: Profit During the year 7,127.80 6,516.34
Add : Reversal of ESOP 0.14 -
Balance as at year end 18,768.87 11,640.93
Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance (33.08) (9.66)
Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plan (105.82) (23.42)
Balance as at year end (138.90) (33.08)
TOTAL OTHER EQUITY 21,154.98 14,130.35

Nature & Purpose of Reserves :

Securities Premium

Balance of Security premium consist on issue of share over its face value. The balance will be utilised for issue of as per|
provisions of Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Share Option Outstanding Account

The share option outstanding account is used to record the value of equity-settled share based payment transactions with
employees.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings comprises of the of the amounts that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity share

holders.
Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)

0Cl includes remeasurement of defined employee benefit plan on account of actuarial gains and losses as per Ind AS 19
Employee Benefits




ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LIMITED
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NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

15  BORROWINGS

(1) Borrowings - Non current
ICICI Property Loan

(Secured against 8th & 9th Floor (2nd & 3rd Office Floor), Block B' & 'C' of Wing E,
Trade Link, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai)

Terms of repayment - Repayable in 5 Years (20 quarters), last instalment falling
due on March 18, 2025

The rate of interest will be I-MCLR 1 Year + Spread, determined at the date of
disbursement and reset at end of every 12 months from the date of disbursement.
The interest rate currently set is at 9.30% p.a.

The Company has made regular repayment of principal & interest due over the
reporting period

Secured Loan from Banks (Vehicle Loan)
(Secured against hypothecation of vehicle purchased)

Terms of repayment - Repayable in 36 to 60 equal monthly instalments, last
instalment falling due on March 02, 2020 to March 03, 2023.

The rate of interest ranges between 8% to 11% p.a.

The Company has made regular repayment of principal & interest due over the
reporting period

(i) Borrowings - Current

Current Maturity of Secured Loan from Banks
ICICI Property Loan
Secured Loan from Banks (Vehicle Loan)
(Refer Note 15(i))

16  TRADE PAYABLES

Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises *
(Refer Note 37)

Total outstanding dues to other than micro, small and medium enterprises

(Rs in Lakh)

AS AT MARCH 31,
2020

AS AT MARCH 31,
2019

3,312.81

36.84

3,335.97

36.84

(Rs in Lakh)

AS AT MARCH 31,
2020

AS AT MARCH 31,
2019

823.34
13.68

22.84

837.02

22.84

(Rs in Lakh)

AS AT MARCH 31,
2020

AS AT MARCH 31,
2019

34.25
121.14

155.39

* The above disclosure is based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to)
applicability under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
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NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

17  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(i) Other Financial Liabilities - Non Current
Lease Liability

(ii) Other Financial Liabilities - Current
Option Premium
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Lease Liability
Provision for Expenses
Advance from Customers

18  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Statutory Dues
Book Overdraft
Advance Received

-
L]

PROVISIONS

Employee Benefit Liabilities - Current
Gratuity Provision ( Refer Note 22A )
Leave Provision
Incentive Provision

(Rs in Lakh)
AS AT MARCH 31,  AS AT MARCH 31,
2020 2019
1,422.17
1,422.17 =
. 1,190.88
11.75 564.32
956.75 2
179.41 208.03
8,863.25 -
10,011.16 1,963.23
(Rs in Lakh)
AS AT MARCH 31, AS AT MARCH 31,
2020 2019
519.84 306.68
- 92.49
0.13
519.97 399.17
(Rs in Lakh)
AS AT MARCH 31,  AS AT MARCH 31,
2020 2019
185.73 87.32
303.45 173.41
3,630.00 3,125.85
4,119.18 3,386.58
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20

21

22

REVENUE FROM OPERATION

Mutual Fund Distribution Income
Income from Distribution & Sale of Financial Product
Gain/(Loss) on Derivative Transaction

OTHER INCOME

Interest Income

Gain on sale of Investment
Dividend Received

Misc and Other Income

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries, Incentive & Allowances
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Share based Payments to Employees

Staff Welfare Expenses

(Rs in Lakh)
FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH ENDED MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019
9,621.74 10,122.50
22,275.49 14,321.39
338.30 2,316.23
32,235.53 26,760.12
(Rs in Lakh)
FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH ENDED MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019
238.62 474.81
230.21 246.55
0.65 -
100.74 574.89
570.22 1,296.25
(Rs in Lakh)
FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH ENDED MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019
15,184.32 12,037.93
793.75 597.44
2.65 n
118.00 97.45
16,098.72 12,734.93

The Company is recognizing and accruing the retirement benefits as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 19 on “Employee Benefits”.
The details are as enunciated below as certified by an Independent Actuary.

Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity:

The gratuity payable to employees is based on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving the services of the Group)
and is in accordance with the Rules of the Company for payment of gratuity.

YD
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NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Inherent Risk

The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In
particular, this exposes the Company to actuarial risk such as adverse salary growth, change in demographic experience, inadequate return
on underlying plan assets. This may result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employee in future. Since the benefits are
lump sum in nature the plan is not subject to any longevity risks.

(Rs in Lakh)
Particulars FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH ENDED MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019
Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of gratuity
(funded by the Company):
Present value of the funded defined benefit obligation at the
end of the year 582.43 416.78|
Less: Fair value of plan assets 396.70 329.46
Net Liability/( Asset) 185.73 87.32
Amounts recognized in Salary, Wages and Employee Benefits in
the Profit and Loss Account in respect of gratuity (funded by the
Company):
Current Service cost 74.67 58.22
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligations 30.12 23.81
Expected return on plan assets (24.87) (18.13)
Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit recognised during the year
Net Gratuity Cost 79.92 63.90
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)
Amount recognized in OCl in beginning of the year 33,08 9.67
Remeasurement due to:
Effect of Change in financial assumptions 27.12 6.64
Effect of Change in demographic assumptions (1.42) -
Effect of experience adjustments 56.61 25.48
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 82.31 32.12
Less : Return on plan assets (excluding interest) (23.50) 8.70
Total remeasurements recognized in OCI 105.81 23.42
Amount recognized in OCl, End of year 138.89 33.08
Actual Return on Plan Assets :
Expected Return on Plan Assets 24.87 18.13
Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets (23.50) 8.70
Actual Return on Plan Assets 1.37 26.83
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Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair
value of the plan assets:

Change in present value of obligation:

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 416.78 325.63
Current Service Cost 74.67 58.22
Interest Cost 30.12 23.81
Liability Transferred out - .
Actuarial {Gain)/loss 82.31 32.12
Benefits Paid (21.45) (23.00)
Past Service Cost - -

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 582.43 416.78

Change in fair value plan assets:

Opening Fair Value of the plan assets 329.46 235.42
Expected return on plan assets 24.87 18.13
Actual Enterprise’s Contribution 87.32 90.21
Actual Benefits Paid (21.45) (23.00)
Actuarial Gain/(loss) (23.50) 8.70

Closing Fair value of the plan assets 396.70 329.46

Investment details of plan assets
Government of India Securities
Corporate Bonds
Special Deposit Scheme

Insurer Managed Fund 100% 100%:
Others = )
Total 100% 100%

Experience Adjustment

Defined Benefit Obligation 582.43 416.78
Plan Assets 396.70 329.46
(Surplus)/deficit 185.73 87.32
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 82.31 32.12
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets - Due to Experience (23.50) 8.70
Weighted average duration of Define benefit obligation 12.95 Yrs 12.61 Yrs

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Within next 12 months 41.01 35.56
Between 1 and 5 Years 133.69 116.97
Between 5 and 10 Years 157.74 110.74
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The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the actuary.

There are no amounts included in the fair value of plan assets for:
i) Company's own financial instrument

ii) Property occupied by or other assets used by the Company

Discount Rate:
Discount Rate for this valuation is based on Yield to Maturity (YTM) available on Government bonds having similar term to decrement-
adjusted estimated term of liabilities.

For valuation as at March 31, 2020 the estimated term of liabilities is 12.95 years, corresponding to which YTM on government bonds is
6.60%, after rounding to nearest 0.05%.

Expected rate of return on assets:
It is the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the Trust Fund.

Salary Escalation Rate:

Salary escalation assumption is based on estimates of over all long-term salary growth rates after taking in to consideration expected
earnings inflation as well as performance and seniority related increases.

Withdrawal Rate:

Assumptions regarding withdrawal rates is based on the estimates of expected long term employee turnover within the organization.

Mortality Rate

It is based on Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ult. as issued by Institute of Actuaries of India for the actuarial valuation.

General Description fair value of the plan:
The Company has insurer Managed Fund.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount rate 6.60% 7.55%
Salary Escalation Rate 3.50% 5.00%

Attrition Rate For Service 4 yrs. &  For Service 4 yrs, &

Below 20.00 % pea & below 20% p.a. &
service 4 yrs. and  service above 4 yrs.
above 2.00 % pea 2% pea

Retirement Age 60 years 60 years
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Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of|
the year and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the same method used to calculate the liability recognized in the
Balance Sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared
with the previous year.

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 582.43 416.78

Discount Rate

Increase by 50 bps 550.61 395.27
Impact of increase by 50 bps in Percentage -5.46% -5.16%
Decrease by 50 bps 617.14 440.20|
Impact of decrease by 50 bps in Percentage 5.96% 5.62%

Salary Growth Rate

Increase by 50 bps 594.96 423.90!
Impact of increase by 50 bps in Percentage 2.15% 1.71%
Decrease by 50 bps 570.35 408.69
Impact of decrease by 50 bps in Percentage -2.07% -1.94%
Expected contribution for the next financial year 41.01 35.56

Asset Liability Matching Strategy
The money contributed by the Company to the Gratuity fund to finance the liabilities of the plan has to be invested.

The trustees of the plan have outsourced the investment management of the fund to an Insurance Company. The Insurance Company in turn
manages these funds as per the mandate provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation which is within the permissible limits
prescribed in the insurance regulations. Due to the restrictions in the type of investments that can be held by the fund, it is not possible to
explicitly follow an asset liability matching strategy.
There is no compulsion on the part of the Company to fully prefund the liability of the Plan. The Company’s philosophy is to fund these

benefits based on its own liquidity and the level of underfunding of the plan.

B Defined Contribution Plans

Amount recognized as an expense under the head “Contribution to Provident and other Funds” in Note 22 "Employee Benefit Expenses” of|
Statement of Profit and Loss towards Company's Contribution to Provident Fund is Rest 713.83 Lakhs (FY 2018-19 Rest 511.37 Lakhs).

(Rs in Lakh)
FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
23 FINANCE COSTS ENDED MARCH ENDED MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019
Interest Expense 323.98 332.53

323.98 332.53
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(Rs in Lakh)
FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
24 OTHER EXPENSES ENDED MARCH ENDED MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019
Business Support Charges 863.77 703.14
Data Processing and IT enabled services 656.33 317.63
Legal & Professional Charges 230.15 390.68
Director Sitting Fees .75 9.00
Electricity Expenses 69.33 56.63
Communication Expenses 63.75 59.11
Printing and Stationery 178.95 121.86
Postage and Telegram 43.67 29.09
Rent, Rates and Taxes TR 1,147.98
Repairs and Maintenance 99.82 83.79
Recruitment & Training 75.61 35.29
Business Promotion and Marketing Expenses 1,349.48 1,201.29
Computer & Softwere Main. Charges 34.29 32.98
Client Claim 57.14 69.89
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 581.12 561.23
Insurance Charges 55.95 33,13
Office Expenses 114.34 81.12
Brand Charges 162.10 35.59
Auditors Remuneration
Audit Fees 11.16 5.02
Tax Audit fees
Others Services/Certification - 44,24
Donation 220.71 82.65
CSR Expenses 114.00 30.00
Transaction Charges 14.86 68.63
Miscellaneous & General Expenses 155.32 51.47
5,231.82 5,251.44
(Rs in Lakh)
FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE ENDED MARCH ENDED MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019
Current Tax
Current tax on profit for the year 2,584.13 3,435.95
Total Current tax expenses 2,584.13 3,435.95
Deferred Tax
Decrease / (Increase) in deferred tax assets (89.22) (38.13)
(Decrease) / Increase in deferred tax liabilities (46.89) (797.35)
MAT credit : 235.59
Total deferred tax expenses / benefit (136.10) (599.89)
Total Income Tax Expenses 2,448.03 2,836.06
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Effective Tax Rate Reconciliation

Particulars

Applicable Tax Rate (%)

Prafit before tax

Tax Expenses as per above rate

Tax Impact Due to:

Expenses Disallowed

Exempt Income

Net impact on adoption of new tax rate (net)
Deductions u/s 80G

On Account of Previous Year Adjustments
Others

Total Tax Expenses

Effective Tax Rate

(Rs in Lakh)
FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH ENDED MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019
2547 29.12
9,575.83 9,352.40
2,410.05 2,723.42
88.99 128.79
(8.64)
7.79 .
(27.77) (12.03)
4.24 2.70
(26.63) (6.82)
2,448.03 2,836.06
25.56 30.32

For the current period tax is charged @ 25.17% (i.e. 22% Basic Tax, 10% Surcharge on Basic Tax and 4% Cess on Basic Tax and Surcharge). For
last financial year applicable tax rate was 29.12% (i.e. 25% Basic Tax, 12% Surcharge on Basic Tax and 4% Cess on Basic Tax and Surcharge).
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26

27

28

(a)
(i)

(i)

(i)

OPERATING SEGMENTS
The Company is engaged in Services for Distribution and Sale of Financial Praducts. As such there are no reportable primary and secondary segments.

LEASES - Ind AS 116

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective)
method. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the|
right of use asset at an amount equal to lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognized in the
balance sheet immediately before the date of initial application.

Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting|
policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2019,

On the date of initial application, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of “Right to Use’ asset (premises) of Rs. 3295.49 Lakh and a lease liability
of Rs.3183.41 Lakh.

The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 9.5%

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

a) Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date.

b) Applied the exemption not to recognise right to use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.
) Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right to use asset at the date of initial application.

d) Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were
previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

Following is the information pertaining to leases for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars (Rs in Lakh)
(a) Depreciation Charge for Right-of-Use Asset 1,131.23
(b) Interest Expense on Lease Liability 260.40
(c) Expense relating to short term leases accounted in profit & loss 73.52

(d) Total Cash Qutflow for Leases for the year (includes expense

relating to short term lease also) 1,283.18
(e) Additions to Right-of-Use Asset 3,443.50
{f) Carrying Amount of Right-of-Use Asset as on 31st March, 2020 2,312.27

Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilities {on Undiscounted basis):

(Rs in Lakh)
Due As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Not later than 1 year 1,132.09
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,560.39
Later than 5 years -
Total 2,692 .48

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

List of Related Parties

Subsidiary Companies

AR Wealth Management Private Limited

Freedom Wealth Solutions Private Limited

Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Private Limited

Entity of which the Company is an Associate
Anand Rathi Financial Services Limited

Key Managerial Persons (KMP)

Amit Rathi, Managing Director

Rakesh Rawal, Director & CEO

Rajesh Bhutra, CFO (w.e.f 10-7-2018)

Amol Jayawant Bhabal, CFO (Upto 10-07-2018)

Ashish Chauhan, Company Secretary (w.e.f 02-12-2019)

Hardik Chauhan, Company Secretary (w.e.f 30-11-2018 and upto 28-11-2019)

Dilip Balakrishnan, Company Secretary (Upte 30-11-2018)
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(iv)

(b)

)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(V)

(wi)

(vii)

{viii)

(ix)

x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Other Related Parties

Anand Rathi Glabal Finance Limited

Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Limited

Anand Rathi Commodities Limited

Anand Rathi Insurance Brokers Limited

Anand Rathi Advisors Limited (Subsidiary of Anand Rathi Global Finance Limited )

Anand Rathi Intemnational Ventures (IFSC) Private Limited ¢ Subsidiary of Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Limited )
AnandRathi Housing Finance Limited (Subsidiary of Anand Rathi Global Finance Limited )

The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

Nature of Transaction/Relationship

Loan Given

Subsidiary

Entity of which the Company is an Associate
Other Related Parties

Loan Repayment Received

Subsidiary

Entity of which the Company is an Associate
Other Related Parties

Loan Taken

Subsidiary

Entity of which the Company is an Associate
Other Related Parties

Loan Repaid

Subsidiary

Entity of which the Company is an Associate
Other Related Parties

Purchase of Debentures
Other Related Parties

Purchase of Investment
Subsidiary

Purchase of Fresh Equity
Subsidiary
Other Related Parties

Support Service Given

Subsidiary

Entity of which the Company is an Associate
Other Related Parties

Support Service Taken

Subsidiary

Entity of which the Company is an Associate
Other Related Parties

Brokerage Expenses
Other Related Parties

Interest Income
Subsidiary
Other Related Parties

Interest Expense
Entity of which the Company is an Associate
Other Related Parties

Rent Expenses
Entity of which the Company is an Associate
Other Related Parties

Brand Charges
Entity of which the Company is an Associate

FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH
31, 2020

1,903.60

24,239.00
1,562.35

19,164.00

73,345.00
1,75,745.00

73,345.00
1,75,745.00

2,62,117.79
2,598.95

1,000.00
10,125.00

13.41

83.48

15.48
768.85
389.32

1.03

101.45
1.46

14.04
14.46

14.40
2.40

162.10

(Rs in Lakh)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

MARCH
31, 2019

3,533.03
380.00
30,841.62

6,411.10
380.00
32,341.62

13,520.00
2,32,018.04

13,520.00
2,32,018.04

1,73,267.31

4,000.00
202.77
362.97

25.32
598.80
469.32

7.72

358.91
83.95

4.59
319.46

14.40

35.59
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Employees Share Option Plans

(xv) Rent Income
Other Related Parties 0.60 0.60
(xvi) Commission Income
Other Related Parties 1,073.7%
(xvii) Referral fees
Subsidiary 100.24
Other Related Parties 181.28 405.86
(xwiii) Remuneration paid to KMP
Short Term Employee Benefits 745.21 554.81
Share Based Payments 0.03 0.02
Post Employment Benefits *
* The value of post employment benefit for all the employees is determined collectively by the appointed actuary and therefore not separately identifiable.
(Rs in Lakh)
AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019
(c) Outstanding Balances
i) Loan Given
Subsidiary - 658.75
Other Related Parties 5,075.00 <
(i) Other Payabies
Subsidiary 1.56
(vi)  Interest Receivable
Qther Related Parties 1.31
(vii) Advance Received
QOther Related Parties 0.05
Note 1: Terms of Loan Given to related parties
Loan given to related parties at the interest rate in the range of 10% to 12% and it is receivable on demand.
Note 2: Related party relationships have been identified by the Management and relied upon by the Auditors.
(Rs in Lakh)
FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR ENDED
29 EARNING PER SHARE ENDED MARCH MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019
Net Profit after tax 7,127.80 6,516.34
Number of equity shares 2,70,27 440 2,69,08,600
Face Value Per Share (in Rs) 5 5
Weighted Average number of equity shares 2,69,96,183 2,69,00,517
Diluted Weighted Average number of equity shares 2,73,67 483 2,74,06,228
Earnings Per Share (in Rs)
- Basic 26.40 24.22
- Diluted 26.04 23.78
30 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The Emplayee Stack Option Scheme (‘the Scheme’) provides for grant of share options to the eligible employees and/or directors (“the Employees”) of the Company
and/or its subsidiaries. The Share Options are granted at an exercise price, which is either equal to the fair market price, or at a premium, or at a discount to market|
price as may be determined by the Board. Each Share Option converts into two equity shares of the Company.

During the financial year 2016-17, the Board of Directors had approved the Policy and the no. of options to be granted to the Employees that will vest in a graded
manner and which can be exercised within a specified pericd. The Board had approved 3,20,000 Options at an exercise price of 10/- per option ta the Employees.

hoy
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31

32

The details of options are as under:
FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR ENDED

ENDED MARCH MARCH

31, 2020 (Nos.) 31, 2019 (Nos.)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 2,56,000 2,67,260
Add: Granted during the year - -
Less: Exercised and shares allotted during the year 59,420 11,260
Less: Exercised but pending allotment -
Less: Forfeited/cancelled during the year =
Less: Lapsed during the year 8.720 .
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,87,860 2,56,000
Exercisable at the end of the year . 64,000

Fair Value of Options granted
The estimated fair value of each stock option granted is 2.82 as on 1 January, 2017, The fair value has been calculated by applying Black-Scholes-Merton model as
Standard deviation has been derived based on the one year historical numbers of the peer group companies adjusted with appropriate illiquidity discount.

The options granted on January 1, 2017 under ESOP 2017 have an exercise price of Rs. 10 per option and would vest over the period as under:

Options Granted (in Nos. ) Vesting Date

52,740 31.12.2017

11,260 31.03.2018

64,000 31.12.2018

96,000 31.12.2019

96,000 31.12.2020
Details of the commitments arising from the Share based payments were as follows: (Rs in Lakh)

AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH

Particulars 31, 2020 31, 2019
Total Carrying Amount 3.30 2.47
Amount debited to Profit & Lass account 2.65 rRA

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Company is liable to spend towards Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013. The details are as follows :

(Rs in Lakh)
AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019
Particulars
Amount required to be spent 110.17 28.68
Amount spent during the year - for developing and empowering Rural india 114,00 30.00

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to equity holders|
of company. The Company manages its capital to ensure that it continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio. Capital gearing ratio of company is as follows :

(Rs In Lakh)
AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019

Equity 1,351.37 1,345.43
Other Equity 21,154.98 14,130.35
Total Equity (A) 22,506.35 15,475.78|
Borrowings 4,172.99 59.6
Total Debt (B) 417299 59.68
Total Debt and Equity (C=A+B) 26,679.34 15,535.46|
Capital Gearing Ratic (B/C) A 0.156 0.004|
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33

34

35

36

37

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The Company had acquired following equity shares at fair value during earlier yeari(sj. Purchase consideration for acquisition of shares in below mentioned entities was|
paid by mode of cash only. The acquisitions were made to enhance the presence in Wealth Management space. The other disclosures with respect to acquisition are as|
under,

AR Wealth Management Private Limited (ARWMPL) is engaged in the business of Digital Wealth Management. The consideration paid for shares of ARWMPL in July 2016|
is Rs. 252,00 lakh, in March 2018 is Rs. 690.25 lakh and in Financial Year 2018-2019 is Rs. 4204.81 lakh. The fair value per share for the aforesaid acquisitions is Rs. 10,
Rs. 256 and Rs. 332(Average price of 3 lots purchased during the year) respectively.

Freedom Wealth Solutions Private Limited (FWSPL) is engaged in the busi of Wealth Manags it. The consideration paid for shares of FWSPL in Sept 2017 is Rs.|
237.16 lakh. The fair value per share for the aforesaid acquisitions is Rs. 10.

Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Private Limited (FIINFRA) is engaged in the business of providing (T enabled services. The consideration paid for shares of
FIINFRA in FY 2019-20 is Rs. 3598.95 lakh. The fair value per share for the aforesaid acquisitions is Rs. 434,

2,99,419 shares purchased on February 13,2020 and 299418 shares purchased on March 31, 2020 are acquired from AR Wealth Management Private Limited and|
2,30,415 shares purchased on March 31, 2020 are acquired in a Right issue by Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Private Limited.

Details of Share acquired/(sold} is tabulated as below-
No. of Shares % of Shares Acquired|

Name of Company

AR Wealth Management Private Limited

July 13, 2016 ) 25,20,000 80.30%
March 14, 2018 5,574 0.13%)
March 16, 2018 1,70,246 4.07%)
March 16, 2018 51,074 1.22%
March 16, 2018 39,157 0.94%
March 22, 2018 5,574 0.13%
May 3, 2018 58,361 1.400
February 5, 2019 11,94,029 7.07%
March 27, 2019 13,044 0.24%
Freedom Wealth Solutions Private Limited

September 25, 2017 23,711,625 95.01%
Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Private Limited

February 13, 2020 2,99,419 50.00%
March 31, 2020 2,99.418 36.11%
March 31, 2020 2,30,415 13.89%

The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position.

The Company, as a process, reviews and ensures to make adequate provisions for material foreseeable loss, if any, on all long-term contracts. As on the reporting date
there is no material foreseeable loss on any long-term contract. The Company has re-measured the derivative contracts to their fair value at the reporting date, as]
such there are no material foreseeable losses on derivative contracts.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

AS AT MARCH AS AT MARCH
31, 2020 31, 2019

Particulars

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account
and not provided for : - 5,110.00
- Capital Commitment for Purchase of Office Property (Net of Advances)

DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises
should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with
the ‘Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’ (‘the Act'|. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at
March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 has been made in the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements based on information received and available with the Company.

(Rs in Lakh):
Particulars FOR THE YEAR ENDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2020 MARCH 31, 2019

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year; 34.25

The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year; -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the - -
appointed day during each accounting year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the

appoainted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the

interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 5 5
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

e g
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38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT - FAIR VALUES

Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the

fair value hierarchy.

(Rs in Lakh)
Fair value
March 31, 2020 Carrying Quoted prices Significant Significant Total
Amount in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets
FVTPL
(i) Mutual Fund - - -
(7,508.54) (7,508.54) (7,508.54)
(ii) Unquoted Debentures 2,481.51 - 2,481.51 2,481.51
(1,034.02) - (1,034.02) (1,034.02)
(iii) PMS 183.21 109.31 73.90 183.21
(iv) Equity Shares of Other Companies 10,131.75 - 10,131.75 10,131.75
(v) Option Premium 409.23 409.23 409.23
Amortised Cost
(i) Loans 5,095.98 - -
(678.42) - 3
(ii) Security Deposit 415.22 -
(412.95) -
(iii) Trade receivables 799.19 -
(927.81) - -
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 2,596.31 - -
(1,110.60) -
(v) Other Financial Assets 404.22 -
(72.25) -
22,516.62 109.31 409.23 12,687.16 13,205.70
(11,744.59) (7,508.54) - (1,034.02) (8,542.56)
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(i

(i)

(Rs in Lakh)
Fair value
March 31, 2020 Carrying Quoted prices Significant Significant Total
Amount in active cbservable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial liabilities
FVTPL
(i) Option Premium - - 5 - -
(1,190.88) (1,084.48) (106.40) . (1,190.88)
Amortised Cost
(i) Borrowings 4,172.99
(59.68)
(ii) Trade payables 155.39 - -
(7.50) x £
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 11,433.33
(772.35)
15,761.71 - - - -
(2,030.41) (1,084.48) (106.40) - (1,190.88)

Valuation techniques used to determine the fair values:
a. Listed equity instruments and mutual funds which are fair valued using quoted prices and closing NAV in the market.

b. Discounted cash flow method has been used to determine the fair value of unquoted equity shares of other companies. The discount
rate is used based on management estimates.

c. The Company has made necessary adjustments to the observable and unobservable inputs used for the purpose of valuation

d. The fair value of the quoted instruments are based on market price at the reporting date. In case of unquoted instruments, the
valuation is done based on the observable market inputs. The valuation of unquoted index options is done through Black and Scholes
model and for unquoted debentures & PMS valuation is done on basis of cash flow analysis.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for the period ended March 31, 2020 and march 31, 2019.

Particulars Unquoted PMS Equity Shares in

Debenturess Other Companies
Opening Balance as on April 01, 2019 1,034.02 - -
Acquisitions 3,44,634.78 73.90 10,125.00
Gains / (Losses) recognized 21,796.03 = 6.75
Realisations 3,64,983.32 - -
Closing Balance as on March 31, 2020 2,481.51 73.90 10,131.75
Particulars Unquoted PMS Equity Shares in

Debenturess Other Companies
Opening Balance as on April 01, 2018 588.54 - -
Acquisitions 2,69,175.03 . %
Gains / (Losses) recognized 12,598.89 - -
Realisations 2,81,328.44 - -
Closing Balance as on March 31, 2019 1,034.02

Note 1 - Figures in brackets in the above table represent previous year numbers
Note 2 - Investment in Equity Shares of Subsidiaries of Rs. 8983.17 lakh (PY Rs. 5384.22 lakh) have been measured at cast.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument can be exchanged in the current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Financial instruments carried at amortised cost such as cash and margin money deposits, trade and other receivables, trade payables,
borrowings and other current financial instruments approximate at their fair values largely due to short term maturities of thesel
instruments.




ANAND RATHI WEALTH SERVICES LTD
CIN : U67120MH1995PLCOB66IE

NOTES TO IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management framework

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary risk|
management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects on revenue. The Company's risk management assessment and policies and processes are|
established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company. to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and|
compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk assessment and
management policies and processes.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The cash flows, funding
requirements and liquidity of Company is regularly monitored by Management of the Company. The objective is to optimize the efficiency and
effectiveness of Company's capital resources.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for al! financial
liabilities

Contractual cash flows (Rs in Lakh)

March 31, 2020 Carrying amount Total On Demand Less than 3 3-12 months 1-5 years
months

Borrowings 4.172.99 4,172.99 - 209.23 627.80 3,335.96

Trade Payables 155.39 155.39 - 155.39 - -

Other Financial Liabilities 11,433.33 11,433.33 . 9,329.37 681.79 1,422.17

Contractual cash flows (Rs in Lakh)

March 31, 2019 Carrying Total On Demand Less than 3 3-12 months 1-5 years
amount months

Borrowings 59.68 59.68 . 5.51 17.33 36.84

Trade Payables 7.50 7.50 - 7.50 - -

Other Financial Liabilities 1,963.23 1,963.23 1,190.88 772.35

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or Counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual|
obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables fram customers, security deposits and investment securities.

Customer credit risk is managed by company as per its policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk. Credit quality of a customerl
credit risk is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scoreboard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment.
Qutstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and all possible steps taken to timely realise them.

The credit risk on Fixed Deposits with Banks, Bank Balances, Investments in Mutual Fund and Derivative Financial Instruments is limited because the
counterparties are Banks, Exchanges and Mutual Fund houses who are structured market players,
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As on reporting date credit risk exposure are as on following: (Rs in Lakh)
March 31, 2020  March 31,
2019
Loans 5,095.98 678.42
Security Depasit 415.22 412.95
Trade Receivables 799.19 927.81
Investment in Debentures 2,481.51 1,034.02
Investment in Mutual Funds - 7,508.54
Option Premium 409.23 -
Investment in PMS 183.21 -
Fixed Deposits with Banks 249.00 1,150.00
Bank Balances in Current Account 2,592.95 0.90
Staff Advances 146.75 20.66
Other Receivables 8.46 1.59
(Rs in Lakh)
i March 31, March 31,
(i} AGE OF TRADE RECEIVABLES 2020 2019
Within the credit period 782.69 924.70
1-30 days Past Dues 2.35 1.37
31-60 days Past Dues 14,00 1.73
61-90 days Past Dues 0.08
91-180 days Past Dues -
More than 180 days past due 0.08 -
799.19 927.81
(Rs in Lakh)
oo March 31, March 31,
(ii) MOVEMENT IN THE EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCE 2020 2019

Balance at end of the year

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at lifetime expected
credit loss :
Balance at end of the year

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market:
Risk comprises three types of risk: a.) Interest Rate Risk, b.) Currency Risk and c.) Other Price Risk such as equity price risk etc.
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40 Advance is secured against units of Kotak India Growth Fund Il which have been held by the Company as a custodian in its own demat account as|

41

42

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company don't have any debt obligation of floating interest rate, so no interest rate risk exists.

Equity Price Risk

The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the
Company's senior management on a regular basis.

At the reporting date, the exposure to equity securities of other entities is as under: (Rs in Lakh)
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Investment in Other Entities 10,131.75

Currency Risk

Currency risk is not there, as the Company's primary business activities are within India and does not have significant exposure in foreign currency.

security and shall be released upon repayment of advance.

The spread of COVID-19 across the globe and India has contributed to volatility in global and Indian Financial Markets and a significant decrease in
the economic activities. The full impact on the business due to COVID-19 related economic slowdown, changes in client sentiment and investment|
behavior are yet unknown. The Company has continued to engage with Clients and Employees through extensive business continuity planning and
robust technology platform with minimal disruption on any business activity during the lockdown phases. Further, the Company has assessed that it
would able to navigate currently prevailing uncertain economic conditions based on its business model, profile of assets and liabilities, availability
of liquidity and capital at its disposal. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s operations and results will depend on
future developments, which remain uncertain. Accordingly, the Company has undertaken extensive scenario planning to better prepare itself and
will continue to actively monitor any material changes to the future economic conditions.

The figures of the previous years have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.
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